
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

APRIL 20, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

     INVOCATION /  Reverend Charles Jackson, Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church 

  

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / April 6, 2015 

     

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / April 13, 2015       

 

CONGRATULATIONS: Bayside Academy Varsity and Junior Chess Team / State Champions      

 

PRESENTATION:        “Free Standing Emergency Department”    /   Letter of Support                                  
               

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry        

Review minutes / April 13
th
  

1.)  Ordinances:      

       a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  North Main Street Resurfacing / Ordinance 2015-23 

 

       b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Survey, Engineering for North Main Street Concrete Drainage Flume 

               Repairs / Ordinance 2015-24 

            

       2.)  Resolutions: 

              a.)   Bid Award:  North Main Street Resurfacing / Ammons and Blackmon Construction  / Resolution 2015-23 

 

              b.)   Bid Award:  North Main Street Concrete Drainage Flume / C. Thornton, Inc. / Resolution 2015-24 

 

              c.)   Bid Award:   Rock Material / Vulcan Materials Company / Resolution 2015-25 

 

              d.)   Bid Award:   Concrete Material / Ready Mix U.S.A., LLC / Resolution 2015-26 

 

              e.)   Approving the City of Daphne’s Participation in the State of Alabama 2015 “Back to School” 

                     Sales Tax Holiday / Resolution 2015-27 

 

              f.)    Approving the City of Daphne’s Participation in the State of Alabama Weather Preparedness 

                     Sales Tax Holiday for the Year 2015 / Resolution 2015-28 

 

              g.)   FY 2015 Capital Equipment Leases (Hancock Bank) / Resolution 2015-29 

 

        3.)  Financial Reports: 

 Treasurer’s Report / March 2015 

 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / February  2015 

 

 Lodging Tax Collections / February 2015 

 

1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               APRIL 20, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 
 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

Review minutes / April 6
th
  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

    

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

Review minutes / March 2
nd

  

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

Review minutes / March 25
th
  

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

 

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

VOTE:  RFP:   Selection of Firm  
               1.  Hatch Mott McDonald 

   2.  Volkert & Associates   

   3.  Lose & Associates 

   4.  Goodwin, Mills, Cawood, Inc 

               5.  Preble-Rish                   

 

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

      MOTION:  Past Due Account 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

     a.)  MOTION:  To transfer $1,000 from Council President Conaway’s training budget into   

           Councilman Lake’s training budget 

  

     b.)   Event Permit / Daphne Art Center / Olde Towne Daphne Farm & Art Faire / June 6, 2015 

 

     c.)   Event Permit / Michael & Krista Mounsey / Early Intervention Benefit Ride / June 6, 2015 

 

     e.)   ABC License / Daphne Chevron / 050 – Retail Beer (Off Premises Only)  / 070 – Retail Table Wine  

                                                                    (Off Premises Only) 

 

     f.)   MOTION:  To authorize the City Clerk to prepare a letter of support on behalf of the City Council for  

2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               APRIL 20, 2015                                            PAGE   3 
 
                                 Thomas Hospital’s  proposal for a  “Free Standing Emergency Department” 

  

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)    Resolution 2015-22. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Authorizing the Appointment of Two Members to the 

                                           YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City 

                                                                               Of Daphne 

 

b.)   Resolution 2015-23. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award: North Main Street Resurfacing / Ammons and Blackmon 

                                                                                Construction 

 

c.)   Resolution 2015-24. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award:  North Main Street Concrete Drainage Flume /  

             C. Thornton, Inc. 

 

d.)   Resolution 2015-25. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bid Award:  Rock Material / Vulcan Materials Company 

 

e.)   Resolution 2015-26. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bid Award:  Concrete Material / Ready Mix U.S.A., LLC 

 

f.)   Resolution 2015-27. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Approving the City of Daphne’s Participation in the State of 

        Alabama “Back to School” Sales Tax Holliday 

 

g.)  Resolution 2015-28. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Approving the City of Daphne’s Participation in the State of 

      Alabama Severe Weather Preparedness Sales Tax Holiday for 

      The Year 2015 

 

h.)  Resolution 2015-29. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .FY 2015 Capital Equipment Leases (Hancock Bank) 

 

 

 

 

       ORDINANCES:  

 

      1
ST

    READ   

a.) Ordinance 2015-23. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:   North Main Street Resurfacing 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-24. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Survey, Engineering for North Main Street 

   Concrete Drainage Flume Repairs 

 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk;  Rusty Russell, City 

Attorney; Richard Merchant, Building Official; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant/Treasurer; Tonja Young, 

Library Director; Dorothy Morrison, DRA and Beautification Committee; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, 

Environmental Advisory Committee; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; 

Heiko Einfeld, Executive Director of the ES Chamber of Commerce.  

 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Johnny Hunt with Celebration Church gave the invocation. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

March 16, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no amendments the March 16, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes were approved as written.  

 

 

PROCLAMATION:  Child Abuse Prevention Month / Ms. Jessica Ware / Care House    

 

Council President Conaway read and presented the proclamation to Ms. Jessica Ware with Care House. 

 

PROCLAMATION:  Earth Day Mobile Bay / Mr. Colin Rust 

 

Council President Conaway read and presented the proclamation to Mr. Colin Rust. 

 

PROCLAMATION:    Bay Academy Varsity and Junior Chess Teams / State Champions 

 

The Team was scheduled to appear at the April 20
th

 council meeting. 

 

 

 

 

5



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be Monday, April 13
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The March 16
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The committee considered some speeding issues that is going on 

in the city.  The next meeting will be April 20
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The minutes for the March 16
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be April 20
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met this afternoon, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  Councilman LeJeune 

announced that Public Work & Equipment Day will be May 13
th

 at Lott Park, and Keep Daphne Beautiful 

Day is May 16
th

 at City Hall.   

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be April 22
nd

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The IDB will be making a presentation at the April 13
th

 Work Session to present details on a commercial 

park project. He mentioned that Thomas Hospital is in need of a “Certificate of Need” to present to the Board 

in Montgomery for a free standing department on Woodrow Lane. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The May 9
th

 meeting has been cancelled due to the “Spring Book Bash” from 2:00 – 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The January 22
nd

 minutes and staff report for the March 26
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to set a Public Hearing date for May 4, 2015 and approve 

advertising to consider ordinances amending the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54:  

 

1. Amending Section 40-7 / Self-Service Vending Machine Units 

    Recommendation:      Unanimous favorable 

 

2. Creating a New Zoning District / B-2a, General Business Alternate District 

    Recommendation:    Unanimous favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

   F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to reschedule the vote regarding choosing a firm for the recreation 

facilities until the April 20, 2015 council meeting, and this will be the last request for additional time.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The next meeting will be April 8
th

.  

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The February 25
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be April 29
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

      a.)  Past Due Account 

 

Council President Conaway laid this over until the April 20, 2015 council meeting when Mayor Haygood 

will be present to discuss the issue. 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

     a.) YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne / Board Members 

 

Council President Conaway laid this issue over until the April 20, 2015 council meeting when Mr. Ross will 

be present to discuss the matter with council. 

 

 

 

7



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e4
 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported there was a fatality on I-10, and there have been lots of 

complaints regarding speeding in the city, and he encouraged citizens to drive carefully. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported Brown Bag by the Bay is Thursday from 11:30 a.m. – 

1:30 p.m. at May Day Park. The next Sunset Series is April 19
th

, and the Daphne Strike Soccer will play 

April 18
th

 with 73 teams. 

 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  

    a.)  Events Permit / Bayside Medical Missions / Annual 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / September 19, 2015 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to approve the Events Permit for Bayside Medical Missions / 

Annual 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / September 19, 2015.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

     b.)  ABC License / Manci’s Antique Club / 120 – Restaurant Retail Liquor 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the ABC License for Manci’s Antique Club / 120 – 

Restaurant Retail Liquor.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

     c.)  AL League Annual Business Session Voting Delegate 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to appoint Councilman Davis as the Voting for the Alabama 

League of Municipalities Conference Business Session being held May 18, 2015 in Tuscaloosa, AL.   

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to appoint Councilman Lake as 1
st
 Alternate Voting Delegate 

for the Alabama League of Municipalities Conference Business Session being held May 18, 2015 in 

Tuscaloosa, AL.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

8



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e5
 

 

     c.)  Three Nominations for the Board of Equalization by August 14, 2015 

Council requested the City Clerk to send them some information regarding the Board. 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
a.)    Resolution 2015-21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Disposition / 

                                                  1994 Caterpillar Dozer 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-21. Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-21.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

       2
ND

   READ   

a.) Ordinance 2015-15. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Pre-Zone Property Located on the Northeast of Public Works 

                                                                             Road and Rand Avenue / Jubilee Properties / From RSF-3,   

                                                                             Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15           

                                                                             to B-2, General Business District, City of Daphne 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-16. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation: Property Located on the Northeast of Public   

                                                                              Works Road and Rand Avenue //Jubilee Properties 

 

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-17. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Amend the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54 

                                                                               New Zoning District / Planned Unit Development 

 

d.) Ordinance 2015-18. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Funds:  Donette Loop Properties Drainage 

                                                                             Repair / Additional Appropriation 

9



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e6
 

 

e.)  Ordinance 2015-19. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Fire Station #3 Renovations 

 

 

f.)  Ordinance 2015-20. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Watershed Protection for:  

                                                                             Old Pump Station –LF / Judicial Center / Wacky Shrimp /  

                                                                             Palmetto-Creekside / Maizie Gulch-West Main Street / 

                                                                             Canterbury Subdivision 

 

 

g.)  Ordinance 2015-21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .City Hall Building Maintenance Appropriation:  City Hall Back  

                                                                            Door Card Reader Installation 

 

h.)  Ordinance 2015-22. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Design Engineering for Tallent Lane  

                                                                             Facility Landfill C&D ADEM Permit 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-15, 2015-16 and 2015-17.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-15.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

  

Mr. Russell stated that there is a letter agreement that will be recorded saying they grant an easement to the 

back part of the property if the front part is sold.  If council decides to approve this Mr. Ross said it should be 

subject to approval by the City Attorney approving the letter.   

 

Councilman Scott withdrew his motion and Councilman Fry withdrew his second. 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-15  predicated upon the City Attorney 

approving the letter regarding the easement.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-16 subject to City Attorney approving the 

letter regarding the easement.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-17.  Seconded by Councilman Davis.   

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e7
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-18, 2-015-20, 2015-21 and 

2015-22.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-18.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2015-20.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Ordinance 2015-21.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Ordinance 2015-22.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Councilman LeJeune mentioned they are moving forward with the lease agreement with the Lake Forest Property 

Owners Association.  It is his understanding that they had a meeting with a couple of council people and the Mayor 

this past week a which was very productive. They are waiting for the attorneys to work out some minor things.  There 

was a big turnout to vote for the Build Baldwin Now, and the public made a large statement.  There is no backup plan.  

He said if this did not pass that he will work on a Daphne City School System, and he welcomes input from citizens 

regarding this plan. There is some genuine mistrust with the public, and this is an opportunity for their constituents and 

public to come together and make a statement that they do want to better the school system.  It will cost some money, 

and it will take a large requirement from the city and citizens.   This is a chance to move forward. 

 
Councilman Davis said he appreciates being selected out as a voting delegate. He pointed out that he was in favor of 

the Build Baldwin Now, but the citizens of Daphne and the county thought otherwise, and he can accept their vote, but 

it does not mean they don’t still need to move forward.  He said that health care, transportation, public safety and 

education are four things that are commonly referred to as a great quality of life, and people move to Baldwin County 

for a lot of reasons, and he thinks it is a culmination of those things.   So they will need to re-address education.  He 

encouraged everyone to come to the work session on April 13
th
.   

 

Councilman Rudicell reminded everyone of the Volunteer Appreciation Day Breakfast on April 15
th
 7:30 a.m.at 

Bayfront Park.  He encouraged all the volunteers to come. 

11



APRIL 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e8
 

 
Councilman Lake said that he was against the new taxes, and they failed for a number of reasons.  He did vote for the 

renewals.  He said the Board of Education needs to be more transparent.  He is not for a city school system.  They have  

already been through that, and the voters have spoken, and they need to listen.  He said that Robbie Owens is a good 

superintendent who inherited a lot of issues. 

 

 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:25 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk       Council President 

12



APRIL 13, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott.  

 

ABSENT:  Robin LeJeune (Out of town); Joe Davis (emergency with wife). 

 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, Toni Fassbender, IDB; Doug Bailey, IDB; 

Pokey Miller, IDB; Denis Kearney, IDB; Jeff Ramsland, IDB; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory 

Committee; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Britton Bonner, Adams & Reese; Mark Gaines, 

Adams & Reese; Keith Gray, Adams & Reese. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1.  PRESENTATION:  REDISTRICTING / MRS. CYNTHIA FEIRMAN / CAREY TECHNOLOGY 

Mrs. Feirman gave a presentation on the redistricting process. If council should select her for this project and 

she could start in May she could have something for council by August.  Mrs. Feirman said her quote was not 

included in the packet in case council did not want to go with her company and  wanted to do an RFP or Sole 

Source the project in which case the cost would come in between $40,000 and $50,000 in that process.  Mr. 

Ross said this would be professional services and would not have to be bid out. 

 

Consensus of Council was to have this on a council agenda for consideration. 

 

2. LOBBYISTS / ADAMS & REESSE 

Mr. Ross introduced the Lobby Team consisting of Mr. Britton Bonner, governmental team, Mr. Mark Gaines, 

governmental team and Mr. Keith Gray, grant writer and grant acquisitions  Mr. Bonner said  what the team is 

doing for the city is broken down into three areas: 

1. State Policy 

2. Federal Policy 

3. Funding 

 

State Policy:  
Seven bills of focus during the State Session: 

1.   Employee Liability Protection 

2.   Municipal Utility tax bill 

3.   HB377 – Affects procedures for annexation and extended police jurisdiction 

4.   Municipal Business License exception for home health providers 

5.   Motor vehicle sales tax bill that is also part of the Governor’s tax package that relates to the cap they 

want to put on a city’s ability to regulate their own sales tax on automobiles 

6.   Annexation bill, Island Annexation 

 

They have also been working on and monitoring the Economic Development package that the Department of 

Commerce put forth, and they are looking at ways it will impact the city. 

 

 

 

 

13



APRIL 13, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Federal Policy: 

Focused on three areas 

1.   Public Infrastructure and Public Infrastructure funding / Been involved with the Bay Way Extension 

and the I-10 bridge project 

2.   Status of municipal bonds / Making sure that is protected 

3.   Online sales tax issue and any effect it could have on the city.  The most recent estimate they have seen 

is $25-30 billion and for the state it is a $350 million issue and that flows down to the city 

 

Funding Opportunity: 

They are looking at federal and state resources and federal dollars administered through the state, and other 

pots of money. They are focusing on four areas identified by the Mayor: 

1.   Parks and Recreation 

They have identified three funding sources that could fit some of those needs.  It is hard to find federal 

dollars for Parks and Recreation 

 

2.   Sewer and Storm Water 

They are looking at Department of Commerce dollars.  They have met five or six times with the 

department officials and they believe there are funds available.  There will be some hard deadlines 

coming up in June and the fall.  Projects will have to be developed, and they will need direction from 

council to take it to the next stage, and guidance on what funds to go after 

 

3.   Economic Development 

Looking at the Department of Commerce package 

 

4.   Public Safety 

Public Safety goes after its own grants, and their role with Public Safety is to give any assistance they 

may need in the process. They can help with finding out the status on grant applications.  

 

Next Steps: 

1. They will be sending out grant assessments to the department heads to get a survey of what the city is 

doing now and how they are doing it in order to see what the base line is, and evaluate it to see if there 

are any additional holes in the grant process  

2. Council needs to start thinking about how they are going to approach the Restore process.  The 

National Fish and Wildlife Federation is a five year window of funds, and it is now in year three, so 

there are two, possibly three years left depending on how some dollars get held back.  Council needs 

to have a plan in place for these funds. The process is time-line driven.  The Alabama Restore Council 

only has $54 million available right now, and once those funds are pushed out who knows when the 

next pot of money will come in.  He recommended Council start taking a methodical approach in 

evaluating what projects are worthy under Restore. 

 

Council discussed the lack of communication by the Lobbying Team with them regarding all that they are 

pursuing for the city. 

 

Mr. Bonner said that he will handle communication however Council directs. 

 

Consensus of Council was that all the council be included in any communications in the future by Mr. Bonner 

or any of the Lobbying Team. 

 

14



APRIL 13, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

3. DISCUSS:  RECREATION FACILITIES PROPOSALS  

Council President Conaway asked the representatives of the five engineering firms to come forth and answer 

questions from the council regarding their proposal.  Some of the Council thinks the park Drive property 

should be utilized along with the other facilities. 

 

Council will make a decision regarding the proposals at the April 20
th
 council meeting. 

 

4.    PRESENTATION:  CITY OF DAPHNE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

Mrs. Toni Fassbender gave an overview of the technology park project they are working on saying they have 

found a location for the park, identified the cost, had an impact study prepared, branded the park and Identified 

a funding source.  It is a 75 acre parcel with frontage on Highway 181 and Champion’s Way.  The first phase 

is for 30 acres, and there is no obligation to purchase the whole 75 acres.  The IDB will purchase the land and 

put in the infrastructure, and the individual will build the building.  It will be a 461,000 square feet Class A 

office space.  She asked Council to join the IDB in making this project a success. 

 

5.     EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mr. Ross, the City Attorney, asked Council to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation.  

The session should last about 20 minutes. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation.  The 

session will last for 20 minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the aforementioned reason for going into Executive Session is 

acceptable according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell    Aye     Scott   Aye 

Lake    Aye     Conaway  Aye 

Fry    Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:09 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes,          Tommie Conaway,                                                                 

City Clerk      Council President                                             

                                        

  

15



16



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
APRIL 13, 2015 

4:30 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. 
Conaway, Councilman Joseph Davis, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman John Lake,  
Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Revenue Officer Jamie Smith, 
Accounting Technician Sue Moody, and City Attorney Kevin Boucher. 
 
Also in attendance were Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Recreation Director David McKelroy, and Mr. 
Larry Cooke, BZA.  
 
The Mayor arrived at 4:45 p.m. 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no Public Participation. 
 

III.      BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 
 

A. Report: New Business Licenses – March, 2015    
      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 3,715. 
 

3,715 - Total Business License issued YTD  -  up 434_from March 2014 ( 3,281 licenses issued).   

 275  - Renewals – out of the 350  
   57  - New businesses with 7 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
   18  - Prior year licenses.   
 
Discussion continued on the four new businesses with a physical location in Daphne.  Mrs. Conaway discussed 
listing the district the new business is located in and the Council person for that district visiting the new business 
to welcome them to the City of Daphne.  Discussion continued on welcoming the new businesses.   
 
Mrs. Smith submitted a Delinquency Report for years 2012-2015.  Mrs. Smith gave estimated delinquency totals 
for businesses located in City - $27,356 vs. Outside of the City - $26,439. Mr. Scott asked what the annual 
collections were for Business License.  Mrs. Smith answered approximately $1.8 million.  Discussion continued 
that that amount of delinquencies was small compared to total collections.  Mrs. Smith stated she will continue 
to collect and clear the delinquent accounts. 
 

IV.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 

       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
Positions      Status 
Code Enforcement Officer    Filled Internal: 4/2/2015 
Accounting Technician (Revenue)   Filled Internal: 4/9/2015 
Rec. Program Coordinator (S.A.I.L. Site)   Interviewing  
IT Computer Services Technician   Reviewing applications  
PT Marketing Coordinator    Reviewing applications 
Police Officer      Posting closes: 4/13/2015 
Fire Fighter      Posting closes: 4/21/2015 
Site Containment Inspector    Posting closes: 4/21/2015 
Custodian      Posting closes: 4/24/2015 

17



Finance Mintues.doc   

Finance Director     Open  
Safety Coordinator     Open  
Planner (Community Development)   Open 
Building Maintenance Supervisor   Open 
 
Safety Committee 
The building inspection report was given by Fire Marshall, Chip Martin.  There were no major findings at any 
City facilities.  The report will be forwarded to the Buildings and Properties committee for review. The next 
Safety Committee meeting is @ 10:00 a.m. April 29, 2015.  
 
HR projects/meetings: 

 Relay for Life is May 1, 2015.  Over $1,600 raised so far.  TV/Blu-Ray Raffle to start soon. 

 Received Bronze Award for Risk Management 

 Corporal/Sgt. Oral Board interviews on April 15 and April 16 

 Planning Training Session for Drug & Alcohol Awareness with Occupational Industrial Medical. 

 “Save the Date” notices for Benefits Fair going out to employees this month. To be held September 2, 
2015. 

 
Mrs. Hinman stated the City had received the bronze Risk Management Award.  The Award Letter was included 
in packet.   
 
Mrs. Hinman discussed the vacant personnel positions listed and their status.  Mrs. Hinman stated there were 
two internal employees hired for the following open positions: Code Enforcement, Matt Creel, previously in the 
Fire Department and Revenue Technician, Connie Champion, previously in Janitorial.  Mr. Scott said he had 
seen Mrs. Champion working at various City facilities and stated she was a hard worker and would be an asset 
for the Revenue Department.  Mr. Johnson stated Public Works/Janitorial department’s loss is the Revenue 
department’s gain. Discussion continued that both employees would be an asset to their new department.   Mrs. 
Hinman noted that Mr. Danny Dillard will be retiring from his position as Site Containment Inspector so that is 
why that position was open.  Mrs. Hinman stated they were interviewing for the Recreation Program Coordinator 
position and reviewing applications for the IT Computer Services Technician and the part time Marketing 
Coordinator.  Mrs. Hinman was asked how many applications were received for these two positions and she 
answered, approximately 14 for the IT position and 20 for the part-time Marketing Coordinator. 
 
Discussion continued on the open positions: Finance Director, Safety Coordinator, Planner, and Building 
Maintenance Supervisor.  Discussion continued on whether the low response to the Finance Director position 
was due to the salary level offered while requiring a CPA certification.  The Mayor said if possible he would like 
to hold an executive session at the following Council Work session to discuss this position.  Mrs. Henson stated 
that Ms. Kelli Kichler, Smith, Dukes, and Buckalew was very proficient in helping with the FY14 year-end close 
and preparation of the CAFR.  Mrs. Henson discussed that perhaps Ms. Kichler could be retained to assist with 
additional catch up work for FY15 needed in order to prepare mid-year financials.  Discussion continued on the 
Safety Coordinator position.  Mrs. Hinman discussed that the Mayor would like to make some changes to this 
job title/description.  The Mayor said he would like to take a different approach on this position.  Mr. Rudicell 
discussed that Council had approved the current job description in the FY2015 Budget.  Discussion continued 
on Council’s authority to approve job descriptions and budget for the positions and the Mayor’s authority to hire 
and fire for budgeted positions.   Mr. Scott ask the City Attorney, just  for clarification,  if the Mayor has authority 
to not hire a position that Council has approved a budget for.  Discussion continued on the Mayor’s and 
Council’s authority.  Mr. Boucher answered the Mayor does have hire and fire authority and that he would 
research further what the Council’s authority is beyond budgeting for personnel positions and approving job 
descriptions.  Discussion continued on the other open positions Building Maintenance Supervisor.  The Mayor 
said he does not have any problems with the Planner position – this one should be ready to move forward.   
 
Mrs. Hinman noted that the Assistant to City Clerk position would be open soon.  Discussion continued that the 
current employee Mrs. Sarah Toulson will be leaving for other endeavors and will be missed.  Mrs. Hinman 
reminded all Council members that they were required to file their Statement of Economic Interest by April 30, 
2015. 

 

 

 

 

18



Finance Mintues.doc   

V. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve previous months minutes 
 
There were no changes to the minutes and the previous month’s minutes were approved. 
 

B. Financial Reports 
 

1. Treasurer’s Report:  March, 2015 
 

    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,720,274                   

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds – $ 1,413,124     

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.9 months 
compared to the previous year – 5.4  months 

Mrs. Henson noted debt service account was down due to large debt payments made last month.  Discussion 
continued on the different accounts and on the increase in the total City funds balance from last year. Mrs. 
Henson stated that she would be closing the 2012 Construction account, as approved by motion by Council at 
the October 2014 meeting, since the projects designated for this fund are being completed and the monies have 
been spent down. Mrs. Henson noted the approximate balance of $326,296 (net of fees + interest at time of 
closing) will be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund as authorized by Council.     
      .   

The Treasurer’s Report as of March, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,720,274          
and Total City Funds - $ 18,719,167 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: February, 2015 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs:  

 $1,056,996 was collected for February 2015 compared to $1,051,602 for February 2014 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   + .5%  

 
Discussion continued on February 2015 collections being only slightly more than last year’s collections for 
February.   
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  February, 2015 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for February 2015 were 
$92,153 which is up $42,368 from February’s 2014’s collections of $49,785.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $ 13,585;   + 17.3 % 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  + 46 % 
 
Discussion was made that there is only one more month before the previous year and current year will be at the 
same Lodging Tax collection rate (rate increased to 6% in April 2014). Discussion continued on the debt being 
paid for BayFront property purchases.  Mrs. Henson noted that the BayFront property debt is scheduled to be 
paid off in 2020. 
 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, March, 2015  
Mrs. Henson reviewed the report and stated that the Reserve for Recreation balance for March is $462,965 up 
from February’s balance of $416,888.  The Reserve for Bay Front balance for March 2015 is $1,985,091 up 
from February’s balance of $1,955,602. 

 
5.  Correction/Court Fund Report, March, 2015 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Correction/ Court Fund Report and reported that $16,989 has been transferred to 
date from the court  portion of the fund to corrections for the purchase of inmate meals and equipment.  All 
equipment to outfit the new kitchen/food preparation setup should be complete and the future monthly 
expenditures should be just for meals.  

19



Finance Mintues.doc   

 
6. Bills Paid Reports –  March, 2015 

 
The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. Mr. Lake asked about the various copier invoices being paid 
and the large amounts.  Mrs. Henson stated Ms. Ciancetta is handling this project but it was her understanding 
that these payments were payoff for existing leases.  Mr. Lake asked additional questions concerning the payoff 
of the old leases.  The Mayor answered that the new copier company had sent a check, approximately $40,000 
(actual $41,102) to cover the payoff of the old leases (lease payoffs to date $51,346). 
 

C. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

1.  2015-I-NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING - $573,446 
 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the project is for resurfacing from McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & Overlay (2.54 miles).  Mr. 
Johnson stated the North Main Street Resurfacing project was originally part of the Alabama Transportation 
Rehabilitation and Improvement Program (ATRIP) Grant.  Mr. Johnson stated that the City was notified that 
there were overages on some previously submitted ATRIP projects and those monies would be pulled from the 
North Main project to cover these projects.  Mr. Johnson stated that it became more cost effective on the North 
Main Street project for the City to fund the project due to associated grant restrictions and administrative fees.  
Mr. Johnson noted that monies had been earmarked for the original match amount from the 2012 Construction 
Fund.  Mrs. Henson noted these funds are still available ($326,296) but would be transferred to the Capital 
Reserve Fund as approved by Council since all other projects designated to be paid out of that fund had been 
completed.  Mrs. Henson noted there are not sufficient monies remaining in the 2012 Construction fund to cover 
the full project cost for North Main Street Resurfacing so the monies would be transferred to the Capital Reserve 
fund where the full amount of the project ($573,446) could be funded.  Mr. Johnson noted there are only two 
major street resurfacings projects remaining:  North Main Street and County Road 13.  A recommendation from 
the engineer, Hatch Mott MacDonald and Mr. Johnson to award to the low bidder, Ammons and Blackmon 
Construction were included in the packet. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to appropriate  $573,446 from Ammons and Blackmon 
Construction  for  NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING  project .  Seconded by Mr.  
Lake.   Motion carried. 

 
 

2. 2015-J-NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUMES  - $43,253                          
(Survey, Design, & Letting Cost - $55,247 / Construction - $290,775)  
(Total Project cost-$346,022 / City’s share - $43,253) 

 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the North Main Street Concrete Drainage Flume project and noted this is the last FEMA 
project and noted the total project cost is $346,022 but only the City’s share $43,253 needs to be appropriated 
(FEMA/EMA will reimburse 87.5% of project cost).  Mrs. Henson noted that the FY2014 Ordinance appropriated 
$14,250 out of Capital Reserve prior to the Rain Storm Fund being set up but no monies were spent on this 
project for FY14.  Mrs. Henson noted a new Ordinance needs to be adopted in FY15 for the monies to come 
from the Rain Storm/General Fund.   

 

Motion by Mr. Lake to adopt an ordinance appropriating $43,253 (City’s share) out of 
the General Fund for  NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUMES  project .  
Seconded by Mrs. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 

D. Bids: (Resolution) 
                  1.  2015-I-NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING  
 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the project and noted the recommendation is to award to the low bidder Ammons & 
Blackmon in the amount of $520,635.95.  

 

20



Finance Mintues.doc   

 
                  2.  2015-J-NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUMES  
Mr. Johnson reviewed the project and noted the recommendation is to award to the low bidder, C. Thornton, Inc. 
in the amount of $290,774.40. 
 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway  to recommend to Council to award: 
. 2015-I-NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING - $520,635.95 as bid to Ammons & Blackmon                          

. 2015-J-NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUMES - $ 290,774.40 as bid to C. 

Thornton, Inc..  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
                  3.   2015-K-ROCK  
Mr. Johnson stated that there were two bids submitted and he recommended the bid be awarded to Vulcan 
Materials Company, the low bidder.  Discussion was made on the term of the bid contract. Mrs. Henson noted 
this is an annual bid with renewal options but the previous awarded vendor did not choose to extend the bid and 
cost did increase slightly in this bid. 

 
                  4.   2015-L-CONCRETE MATERIAL  
Mr. Johnson stated that there was only one bid submitted which is not unusual for this bid.  Mr. Johnson 
recommended the bid be awarded to the sole bidder, Ready Mix USA, LLC. 
 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway  to recommend to Council to award the following bids:              
. 2015-K-ROCK  for  Unit Cost as bid to Vulcan Materials Company                         
. 2015-L-CONCRETE MATERIAL for Unit Cost as bid to Ready Mix USA, LLC                          

Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 

E. Annual Sales Tax Holiday Resolutions: 
 
      1.  Back To School Sales Tax Holiday  

                   2.  Severe Weather Sales Tax Holiday 
Mrs. Henson noted she had received notification from the State of Alabama that it was time to renew the Sales 
Tax Holiday Resolution.  Mrs. Henson noted that the representative from the State had advised that several 
municipalities just adopt a continuing resolution approving the City’s participation in the Sales Tax Holidays 
where the Council could rescind if they no longer wanted to participate.  This would let the State know the City 
would be a continuing participant each year unless notified otherwise. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to adopt the continuing Resolutions for the City of Daphne to 
participate in the: 
      1.  Back To School Sales Tax Holiday  
      2.  Severe Weather Sales Tax Holiday    
Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

F.  Authorizing Resolution: FY2015 Capital Equipment Leases - Hancock Bank 

 
Mrs. Henson stated that the leasing company (Hancock Bank) for the Capital Leases approved for FY2015 
(Ordinance 2014-46) requires a resolution be approved as part of the agreement. The resolution list all the 
approved equipment to be leased for FY15 through Hancock Bank.  Mrs. Henson noted the City attorney has 
reviewed the lease agreement and the Resolution.  The City attorney issues a legal opinion letter for every 
equipment lease the City enters into. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to adopt the Resolution authorizing the FY2015 Capital Equipment 
Leases through Hancock Bank.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 5:43 p.m.  

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, April 6, 2015 

4:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Robin Lejeune; Councilman Ron Scott; 

Councilman Randy Fry; Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Councilman John Lake; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Councilman Pat Rudicell; 

Richard Merchant, Building Official; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Suzanne Henson, 

Senior Accountant; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk (recording secretary); Selena Vaughn, 

Village Point Foundation; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Pete Root, Daphne Art Center; 

Victoria Phelps, Lake Forest Property Owners Association. 

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood 

The meeting was brought to order at 4:32 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public participation 

 

Pete Root of the Daphne Art Center addressed the committee to ask permission to paint two of 

the exterior walls of the art center with chalkboard paint, to create an outdoor community 

chalkboard.  He passed out a document depicting the walls under consideration, which is 

included with the packet herein.  Mr. Root noted that all chalk would be kept in the art center 

and the walls monitored to ensure no inappropriate messages were left on the walls. 

Motion by Mr. Lake grant permission to the Daphne Art Center to paint one wall with 

chalkboard paint for a trial period of 90 days.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried 

unanimously.  

2. Approval of minutes: March 2, 2015 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the March 2, 2015 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

3. Lake Forest POA Lease: Lake Nine Golf Course 

 

Councilman Ron Scott reported that he had met with Mayor Haygood as well as representatives 

from the Lake Forest POA, and all parties were happy with the agreement and waiting on their 

respective attorneys to move the agreement to the next stage. 

 

Committee members clarified the issue of property taxes for the property, stating that payment 

of property taxes are tied to ownership of the property and the city would not be responsible for 

29



those costs.  Also clarified: LFPOA would only pay for improvements to the property if the lease 

was broken for any reason. 

 

4. Civic Center, Bayfront, and CVB report (March): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her March report.  March 2015 revenue totaled 

$16,672.00, a decrease from March 2014 levels.  She noted that revenue figures for February 

and March fluctuate with the dates of Mardi Gras every year.  Year to Date revenues stood at 

$84,336.00, below figures listed for FY2014.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits 

for March stood at $22,886.50, and that the Civic Center has seen six events during March, for a 

total of 16 days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for March totaling $5,892.00, 

above March 2014 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $34,401.00, an increase from 2014 

numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for March stood at $9,178.00, and 

that Bayfront Pavilion has seen eight events during March, for a total of eight days used, not 

including setup days.   

 

Convention & Visitors Bureau Report: 

 Ms. Thigpen provided information regarding the City’s second event lead for the 

Diocesan Episcopal Convention.  This provided information regarding the economic 

impact of this group, which is contained in her report herein. 

 Jubilee Festival update: the Chamber would like to expand the festival with the inclusion 

of food and music components.  The Jubilee Festival will be held the third weekend in 

September. 

 Official Visitors Guide: Ms. Thigpen shared Fairhope’s official visitors guide distributed 

by the Fairhope Merchant’s Association as an example of what Daphne needs to put 

together for its tourists. 

 Capital Improvements update: She is currently gathering quotes to replace the windows 

at Bayfront Pavilion.  The first quote came in at $12,000.00.  Additional projects slated 

for commencement include new countertops in the sunset room and new bathroom 

floors. 

 The City’s business listings with AL.com have been renewed.  The committee was 

encouraged to inform Ms. Thigpen of any information they would like to see displayed 

here. 

 

5. Building inspection monthly reports (March):  Richard Merchant 

 

Richard Merchant reviewed the building report for the month of March.  He reported 19 new 

residential construction projects initiated, and one new commercial development.  The 

department issued 120 permits during March, with a total job valuation of $5,450,712.00 with 

permit fees totaling $41,296.98.   

 

6. Bayfront property 

30



 

Selena Vaughn informed the Committee that this year marks the 20th anniversary of the Village 

Point Foundation and Village Point Park Preserve.  To celebrate, the Foundation would host an 

“Archaeology Day” event in conjunction with the University of South Alabama.  Activities 

include historic tours of the property and cemetery, children’s activities, and free fossil 

identification. 

 

Al Guarisco noted his concern about the health of Jackson’s Oak.  It has been found that the tree 

has some rot and is hollow in places.  After discussion, the Committee generally agreed that 

quotes should be obtained for professional services to assess the trees’ health and decide 

whether cabling or other support equipment is necessary. 

 

7. Fire Station #3 Update: Richard Johnson 

 

Mr. Johnson reported that Mayor Haygood has signed the contract and that his department 

should hear from the contractor soon. 

 

 

8. City Hall Facilities Use Report: 2014 

 

Sarah Toulson discussed her report, which is contained in the packet herein. 

 

9. Address Signs for Daphne Parks 

 

Mr. Johnson noted that the city could assign addresses as needed and signage could be 

incorporated into the Mayor’s signage package currently in development. 

 

10. Roof Repairs: Daphne Art Center 

 

Richard Johnson reported that more consistent quotes would be available at next month’s 

meeting for consideration.   

 

Suzanne Henson noted that vendors for smaller projects like this need to have workman’s 

compensation coverage. 

 

11. Parking Lot Resurfacing: Fire Station #4 

 

The Committee discussed the issue but took no action. 

 

12. Other Business 

 

Councilman Davis announced that Thomas Hospital has located within Daphne and has been 

asked to send a letter of recommendation for this project.  He would like to see a resolution 

passed by the Council supporting this project with a presentation to the infirmary staff. 

 

31



With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:30, motion by 

Mr. Scott and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

 

 

 

 

32



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:30 PM on March 2, 2015 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 Meeting was called to order at 5:40 p.m. 

  

 Committee Members Present: Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron 

Scott, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Richard D. Johnson-Public Works Director, Dorothy Morrison-

Daphne Beautification Committee and Michele T. Hanson, secretary.   

 Others Present: Councilman Pat Rudicell, Randy Davis - Volkert. 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Work Request Report - The report for January 2015 was reviewed.  

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – The reports for January 2015 and FY2015 Summary 

were reviewed.   

C. Correspondence – No Correspondence. 

D. Public Participation –  
a. Sidewalk Petition on US Hwy 98:  This petition is requesting a sidewalk from Yacht Club 

Drive to the Publix Shopping Center.  There has been a meeting with ALDOT regarding this 

matter and asked what was necessary for the city to take this on as our project; waiting on their 

response. This would need to be put in the budget for next year; this year’s sidewalk projects 

are already full. 

b. DRA – Bicycle Racks: Discussed at Buildings & Property Committee. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – The minutes from the February 2, 2015 meeting were reviewed and approved.  

 

Motion by Ron Scott, Seconded by Tommie Conaway to approve the minutes as presented.  

Motion carried. 

 

B. Mosquito Report – No Report. 

C. Street Sweeper Report – The January 2015 report was reviewed by the committee. Mr. Johnson 

stated that the small report was due to vacation taken by the driver and the sweeper being in the 

shop for some repairs. 

D. Yancey Branch – Properties of Jackson Oak Drive 
Mr. Johnson reviewed and discussed the issue with the rain event of April regarding the 2 

properties on Jacksons Oak Dr.  These 2 properties are flooding when there is significant rainfall, 

which has happened over several years. Looking at the data that has been collected, Yancey 

Branch has deteriorated over the years and the flood plan is lower on the south side. We don’t have 

a ready solution for this problem; discussing possible options.  Ashley Campbell stated there is a 

history of restoration that has been done by the city.  Mr. LeJeune suggested that the City purchase 

the properties. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PW/Environmental Programs GIS Intern – 

Mr. Johnson discussed with the committee the need for this intern position to be filled and utilized in the 

Public Works and Planning departments.  The normal intern hourly rate is $7.50, however since he is a 

graduate student and his resume reflects his various qualifications, Mr. Johnson requested that he be paid 

$15.00/hr. He will work this summer, 15-32 hours per week. 

 

Motion by Ron Scott, seconded by John Lake to favorably recommend to the council to allow Mr. 

Johnson to proceed with the Intern Agreement for Scott Henning with an hourly rate of $15.00.   

Motion carried. 

 

33



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:30 PM on March 2, 2015 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 

 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. No Report. 

  

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A.   Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) – January 2015 

The committee reviewed the January report.  Mr. Johnson stated we had a really good month in 

January and for the first time, we’re ahead of our goal. 

 

 B.  Solid Waste New Customer Report – January 2015 

The committee reviewed the January report. Fourteen new customers were added in January. 

 

 C. Tallent Lane – ADEM C&D Permitting – Engineering Costs 

Mr. Johnson stated that we are clear to make an application to ADEM to move forward with the 

Tallent Lane C&D site; however we do have to have a set of engineering plans. He reviewed the 

proposal from HMR for the design & permitting of the facility. The total cost of these fees will be 

$70,300.00.  If we begin using our facility at the beginning of our budget, we will save 

approximately $70,000, thus breaking even the first year. 

 

Motion by Ron Scott, seconded by Tommie Conaway to forward the request for engineering cost 

for the Tallent Lane C&D permitting to the Finance Committee.   Motion carried. 

 

 D. Solid Waste Fees – Proposal and Consideration 

Mr. Johnson presented to the committee the trash option proposal again. Right now the recycle 

business is extremely slow in income and this increase proposal will help with this. He requested 

that this option be re-visited by the committee and the council.  Mr. Scott stated that he feels now 

is not the right time to be increasing any type of fees.  

 E. County-Wide Recycling Meeting Report 

Mr. Johnson reported that all the cities in Baldwin County that recycle share a common problem, 

in that we have one common buyer of recyclable material (Tarpon Paper) and the world wide 

commodity value of recyclable has gone to nothing, thus causing Tarpon Paper not able to pay on 

the materials that we deliver to him.  Based on that, the County is discussing the idea of becoming 

an MPO/host, with cooperative members (Daphne, Fairhope, Gulf Shores, etc.) who have 

recyclable materials, would build a MRF at the Magnolia Landfill and allow those materials to be 

delivered there. This would be set up like an enterprise fund and the recyclables would be sold on 

the open market.  A business plan is being created, however a resolution of support is needed from 

the council.  Mr. Johnson stated that this would be a long term committee with the county. 

 

Motion by Ron Scott, seconded by John Lake to favorably recommend to the city council to pass 

a resolution of support for the County-Wide MRF business plan.     Motion carried. 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – February 9, 2015 meeting minutes were reviewed. No questions or comments. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from the February 4, 2015 meeting were reviewed.  Dorothy Morrison reported Arbor 

Day was moved to this Saturday, March 7
th
.  

 

 

 

 

34



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:30 PM on March 2, 2015 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 
 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Next meeting – March 23, 2015. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT    

A. Hatch Mott MacDonald – John Peterson reported that the Rolling Hill Drive Project will kick off 

construction this week.  

B. HMR – No report. 

C. Preble-Rish – No report. 

D. Volkert – No report. 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting will be April 6, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. at Council Executive Room. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

35



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

March 25, 2015 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
Members Present: Casey Zito, Doug Bailey, Dorothy Morrison, Ken Balme 
 
Absent: Debbie Strahley, Dayna Oldham, Patricia Vanderpool 
 
Also Present: Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Sarah Toulson (Recording 
Secretary) 
 
Chairman Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
1. Public Participation 
 
No one spoke. 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion: to approve the minutes from the February 25, 2015 meeting as written.  
Moved by Dorothy Morrison, Second by Ken Balme.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
3. Treasurer’s Report 
 
Chairman Zito reviewed the Treasurer’s report, stating DRA funds currently 
stood at $162,280.13.   
 

Motion: to approve the February 25, 2015 Treasurer’s Report as written.  
Moved by Dorothy Morrison, Second by Kennard Balme.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
4. Pine Lodge Building 
 

Dorothy Morrison updated the committee, stating that the owners of the Pine 
Lodge building were currently considering their options in preparing the 
property for sale, including a request for a mini-grant to complete some 
repairs to the building. 

 
5. Bicycle Racks for Downtown 

 

36



Ms. Zito updated the committee, stating that the proposed bicycle racks were 
well-received by the Buildings and Property and Public Works Committees.  The 
committee discussed and generally agreed to use carbon steel in the creation of 
the racks.  Ms. Zito said that she would work with public works and America 
Jones on details, including exact locations, and number of units. 
 
Places considered for placement were City Hall front lawn, Lott park near 
playground, and Eastern Shore Café or in front of Christ the King under the trees 
 
6. Main Street Alabama 

 
Ken Balme mentioned that Mary Helmer would be in the area April 8 – 9.  DRA 
members would try to meet with her then or at the May meeting. 
 
7. DRA Website Update 
 
Ms. Zito announced that Janet Reid of JMF solutions would address the DRA at 
the April meeting.  Pages that would be published in the initial website release: 
 

- About us page: information about board members of the DRA including 
background, length of time living in Daphne, and other information that 
conveys a friendly and approachable feel. 

- Calendar of events 
- Merchants page: describing downtown businesses under different 

categories. 
 
8. Daphne Art Center Mini-Grant 
 
Mr. Balme explained the mini-grant as needed to advertise for the Daphne Art 
Center’s second annual farm and art faire.  Ken explained the reach the television 
advertisements would have for the area.  He also stated that this would be the Art 
Center’s only request for funds for this event from the DRA. 
 

Motion: to approve the Daphne Art Center Mini-grant for an amount not to 
exceed $3,150.00.  Moved by Dorothy Morrison, Second by Doug Bailey.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
9. Other Business Deemed Necessary 
 

 Dorothy Morrison provided a handout listing the location of all Daphne 
City parks, including information about the purpose of the parks and what 
it takes to keep them properly maintained. 

 Mr. Balme updated the committee on the following: 
o He is working with the Daphne Art Center on a promotional piece 

called “Coffee with Annie” which will provide the public an 

37



opportunity to meet Annie Root and hear about the Art Center’s 
offerings. 

o He alerted the committee to an opportunity to hold a seminar that 
could potentially bring a crowd to the downtown area called “Art as 
a Business.” 

 
With no other business to consider, the meeting was adjourned at 
6:49 p.m. Moved by Dorothy Morrison, seconded by Kennard Balme.  
Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Next Meeting: March 25th at 5:30 pm. 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



1 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-22 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF TWO MEMBERS TO THE  

YMCA PUBLIC PARK AND RECREATION BOARD OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne, (“the 

Authority”), duly incorporated as a public corporation under the laws of Alabama and is duly 

existing under Chapter 60 of Title 11 of the Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority was incorporated by the filing in the Office of the Judge of 

Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama the Certificate of Corporation of YMCA Public Park and 

Recreation Board of the City of Daphne on March 22, 2002; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Board was constituted to include a three (3) member board  whose 

duties and responsibilities were more specifically set forth pursuant to Chapter 60, Title 11 of the 

Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on November 3, 2009 the following were duly elected, qualified and acting 

officers of the Board:   

 

 Name     Office    End of Term 

 

 Lynne T. Devault   Chairman   April 15, 2012 

 

 Allison Ellis    Secretary   April 15, 2014 

 

 Kenneth Wells   Treasurer   April 15, 2010  

 

 WHEREAS, the YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne 

refinanced certain obligations that had previously been funded through Regions Bank in 

September 2009 to Iberia Bank and based on said refinancing there is determined to no longer be 

a need for the YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne to continue to 

exist; and  

 

WHEREAS, in order to conclude the financial transaction with Iberia Bank, the title 

company and legal counsel representing Iberia Bank have requested that board members be 

appointed to said YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne for the 

purposes of entering into a Lease Termination Agreement and the form is set forth as Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto and incorporated by reference and for the subsequent dissolution of said 

Board. 

 

 
 

48



2 

 

RESOLUTION 2015-22       APPOINT BOARD MEMBERS TO YMCA PARK BOARD              PAGE   2 

 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama that the following persons be and are hereby appointed by the City Council of the City 

of Daphne to be members of the Board of Directors of the YMCA Public Park and Recreation 

Board of the City of Daphne, and the City Council, by appointing the individuals named below 

recognize that this will be for purposes of entering into the Lease Termination Agreement as 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and any other documentation necessary and/or related to the 

termination of said Board, after the requirements of the title company and counsel for Iberia 

Bank are provided. 

 

Name 

 

Maureen McCafferty Hryniszak 

 

Susan Pruet Biosketch 

 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the _____ day of April, 2015. 

 

       CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

       an Alabama Municipal Corporation 

 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

49



50



51



LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT 
 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

 

COUNTY OF BALDWIN 

 

 

 Comes now YMCA of South Alabama, Inc., f/k/a Young Men’s Christian Association of 

Mobile (d/b/a YMCA of Metropolitan Mobile), an Alabama not for profit corporation, and 

YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne, a public corporation of the 

State of Alabama, and jointly agree to terminate and end the Facility Lease Agreement entered 

by and between them on or about October 10, 2002 and recorded as Instrument No. 686873 in 

the Records of the Office of the Judge of Probate for Baldwin County, Alabama, and the Lease 

Agreement entered between them dated October 1, 2002 and recorded as instruction No. 686874 

in the Records of the Office of the Judge of Probate for Baldwin County, Alabama.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunder set our hands and seals in 

duplicate on this _____ day of ________________, 2015.   

 

 

      YMCA PUBLIC PARK AND RECRETION 

      BOARD OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

      By:  _____________________________________ 

       Its: ________________________________ 

ATTEST: 

 

By:  _____________________________ 

 Its:  _______________________ 

 

 

YMCA OF SOUTH ALABAMA, INC., f/k/a 

Young Men’s Christian Association of Mobile 

(d/b/a YMCA of Metropolitan Mobile) 

 

 

By:  ______________________________________  

 Its:  Chief Volunteer Officer 

ATTEST: 

 

By:  _____________________________ 

 Its:  Secretary 

 

 

 

52



2 
 

  

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

 

COUNTY OF BALDWIN ) 

  

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby 

certify that _________________, whose name as ______________ YMCA Public Park and 

Recreation Board of the City of Daphne, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known 

to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the 

instrument, he, as __________________with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for 

and on behalf of said corporation. 

 

 Given under my hand and seal this _____ day of ____________________ 2015. 

 

              

      Notary Public       

      My Commission Expires:     

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

 

COUNTY OF MOBILE ) 

  

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby 

certify that JOHN BROWNING whose name as Chief Volunteer Officer of YMCA of South 

Alabama, Inc., f/k/a Young Men’s Christian Association of Mobile (d/b/a YMCA of 

Metropolitan Mobile), is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me, 

acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, 

as Chief Volunteer Officer with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and on behalf of 

said corporation. 

 

 Given under my hand and seal this _____ day of ____________________ 2015. 

 

              

      Notary Public       

      My Commission Expires:     

 
 

 

This Instrument Prepared By: 

S. Wesley Pipes, Esquire 

Pipes, Hudson & Watts, L.L.P. 

One St. Louis Centre, Ste. 2500 

Mobile, AL  36602  

(251) 432-7200 

wesley@pipeshudsonwatts.com  

 

 

53



RESOLUTION 2015-23 
 

  2015-I-NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING 

  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING will 
exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the NORTH MAIN STREET 

RESURFACING and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING be awarded to 
Ammons and Blackmon Construction. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from 
Ammons and Blackmon Construction in the amount of $520,635.95 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2015-I- NORTH MAIN STREET RESURFACING.   
 
 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, THIS            day of                  , 2015 
 
                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 
 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



 
 

RESOLUTION 2015-24 
 

  2015-J-NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUME 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE 
DRAINAGE FLUME will exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the NORTH MAIN STREET 
CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUME and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable 
(Construction-$290,774.40 + CE&I-$55,247.13 = $346,021.53 Total project cost); and 
 
WHEREAS,  FEMA and State of Alabama will reimburse for 87 ½ % project cost for the 
NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUME; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE 
FLUME be awarded to C. Thornton, Inc. . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                                                
C. Thornton, Inc.   in the amount of $290,774.40   as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 
2015-J- NORTH MAIN STREET CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUME.   

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                     , 2015. 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

67



68



69



70



RESOLUTION NO.  2015-25 
 

2015-K-ROCK MATERIAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the ROCK 
MATERIAL will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the ROCK MATERIAL and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the ROCK MATERIAL be awarded to 
Vulcan Materials Company. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Vulcan Materials Company for unit cost (delivered) as follows:  
 
     Crushed Aggregate 825-A - $34.85  
                                             Crushed Aggregate 825-B - $30.96 
    #57 Limestone             - $35.03           
                                             #78 Pea Gravel - No Bid                  
    Rip Rap – Class I        - $51.22       
    Rip Rap – Class II       - $ 51.22 
 
      
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2015-K-ROCK MATERIAL. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                    day of _                    _, 2014. 
 

                                                                           
     

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                                               

71



72



73



RESOLUTION NO.  2015-26 

2015-L-CONCRETE MATERIAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the CONCRETE 
MATERIAL will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed  the bids for the CONCRETE MATERIAL and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the CONCRETE MATERIAL be 
awarded to Ready Mix U.S.A., LLC. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Ready Mix U.S.A., LLC for unit cost as follows: 
  
Type 1 - Mix "A", Minimum PSI strength at 28 days 3,000 Lbs. concrete. 

      

0 - 5 Cubic Yards $ 94.00   Per Cubic Yard * 

$100.00  Per Cubic Yard w/Fiber Ref. 

Over 5 Cubic Yards $ 94.00   Per Cubic Yard 

                                                      $100.00   Per Cubic Yard w/Fiber Ref. 

Integral Color Concrete - Minimum PSI strength at 28 days 3,000 Lbs.(Augusta Gold) 
0 - 5 Cubic Yards $105.00  Per Cubic Yard * 

Over 5 Cubic Yards $105.00  Per Cubic Yard 
*  0 – 5 Yards - $100/Load Delivery Fee  /  Delivery is included in CY cost bid for Over 5 Yards                 

 
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2015-L-CONCRETE MATERIAL. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of                     _, 2015. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

74



75



76



   

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-27 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA  

2015 “BACK TO SCHOOL” SALES TAX HOLIDAY 

 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2006-574 grants municipal governments authority 

to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment of 

municipal sales and use tax during a period designated by the State of Alabama 

(generally commencing at 12:01 a.m. on the first Friday in August of each year 

and ending at twelve midnight the following Sunday) under the same terms, 

conditions and definitions as provided for in the State’s Back to School Sales 

Tax holiday. 

 

Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain covered items 

from the payment of municipal sales and use tax for the period during the 

designated tax holiday period under the same terms, conditions and definitions as 

provided for by Act No. 2006-574 and Alabama Department of Revenue Rule 

810-6-3-.65. 

 

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption and the City will 

participate each year thereafter until and unless the annual participation is 

rescinded by further action of the council.  

 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _____ day of _____________, 2015. 

 

 

 

    ________________________________ 

    Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

77



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-28           
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 

SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS SALES TAX 

HOLIDAY FOR THE YEAR 2015 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2012-256 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment 

of municipal sales and use tax during the period as designated by the State of Alabama  

(generally the last full weekend in February of each year) and under the same terms, conditions 

and definitions as provided for by the State of Alabama SEVERE WEATHER 

PREPAREDNESS TAX holiday. 

 

  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain 

covered items from the payment of municipal sales and use tax for the designated period under 

the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by Act No. 2012-256 and Alabama 

Department of Revenue Rule 11-51-210(e). 

 

  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption and the 

City will participate each year thereafter until and unless the annual participation is rescinded by further 

action of the council.  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _______ day of  _____________, 2015. 

 

 

    ________________________________ 

    Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

78



RESOLUTION 2015-29 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION: FY2015 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT LEASES    
(HANCOCK BANK) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER  _____________________________ moved the adoption of the following Resolution: 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, THE GOVERNING BODY (“THE COUNCIL”) OF CITY 

OF DAPHNE , ALABAMA (THE “LESSEE”), FINDING IT NECESSARY TO ACQUIRE CERTAIN 

EQUIPMENT FOR GOVERNMENTAL PURPOSES AUTHORIZED BY LAW: FINDING THAT IT 

WOULD BE IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST TO ACQUIRE SUCH EQUIPMENT UNDER THE TERMS 

OF A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT: FINDING THAT HANCOCK BANK (THE “LESSOR”) 

HAS OFFERED TO ACQUIRE SUCH EQUIPMENT, OR TO ACQUIRE FROM AND REIMBURSE 

THE LESSEE FOR THE COST OF SUCH EQUIPMENT IN THE EVENT THE EQUIPMENT HAS 

ALREADY BEEN PURCHASED BY THE LESSEE, AND TO LEASE SUCH EQUIPMENT TO 

LESSEE: FINDING THAT SUCH PROPOSAL IS IN THE INTEREST OF THE LESSEE AND 

AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING  THE AUTHORIZED OFFICERS (AS HEREINAFTER 

DEFINED) TO EXECUTE A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND SUPPORTING SCHEDULES 

AND ATTACHMENTS INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ASSIGNMENTS OF TITLE TO THE 

EQUIPMENT TO HANCOCK BANK TO THE END THAT THE EQUIPMENT SHALL BE 

ACQUIRED BY SUCH BANK AND LEASED TO  THE LESSEE ON THE TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS EXPRESSED IN SUCH LEASE.   

 

 WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is necessary to acquire the below items 

of Equipment (the “Equipment”) for use by the Lessee for purposes authorized by law: 

 

 Six (6) New Chevy Tahoes 

 One (1) New Mack Garbage Truck 

 One (1) New 2015 Dodge R1500 Truck 

 One (1) New 2015 Ford F450 Crew Cab Truck 

 One (1) New 2015 Freightliner Truck with Loader 

 One (1) New Knuckleboom Bucket Truck 

 One (1) New Fire Truck 

 

 WHEREAS, the referenced equipment shall be financed on seven (7) separate Lease 

Purchase Agreements with Mayor and City Clerk to execute all seven (7) Lease Purchase 

Agreements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it would be in the public interest to acquire 

such equipment through seven (7) Lease Purchase Agreement as provided under Section 41-

16A-1 et seq. of the Code of Alabama, 1975; and  

 

 WHEREAS, to the best knowledge and belief of the Council, this lease qualifies as a 

qualified project bond within the meaning of the Tax Reform Act of 1986; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Hancock Bank has proposed to acquire the equipment at the offered price 

and to lease the equipment to the Lessee at the rate of 2.19% per annum; and  

79



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION 1:  The Mayor and City Clerk (hereinafter the “Authorized Officers”) be and 

are hereby authorized and directed to execute a Lease Purchase Agreement (also referred to as a 

“Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement”), either reference being the “Agreement”, and all 

attachments thereto. Such Agreements shall be in substantially the form attached hereto with 

such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are permitted or required by this 

Resolution and as are consented to by the Lessee’s representatives (the “Authorized Officers”) 

executing the Agreement, such consent being evidenced by their signatures.   

 

 SECTION 2:  The Equipment to be leased pursuant to the Agreement shall be more fully 

described in a schedule to the Agreement titled “Exhibit D – Description of the Equipment”. 

Upon delivery and acceptance by the Lessee of the Equipment, the Authorized Officers are 

authorized and directed to execute a Certificate of Acceptance of such Equipment and, as 

provided in Section 4.01 of such Lease, the lease term shall commence on the date of acceptance. 

  

 SECTION 3:  The Authorized Officers are further authorized and directed to execute on 

behalf of the Lessee a Financing Statement and all other documents as provided for under 

Section 7.02 of such Lease to establish and maintain the security interest of Hancock Bank in 

such Equipment. 

 

 SECTION 4:  The Lessee and the Council acknowledges that pursuant to Section 8.03 of 

the Agreements (“Provisions Regarding Insurance”) agrees to provide property damage and 

liability insurance in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.     

 
COUNCIL MEMBER                                                 seconded the motion and after a full discussion, 

the same was put to vote with the following results: 

    Randy Fry         Voted: _______ 

Tommie Conaway    Voted: _______ 

John L. Lake     Voted: _______ 

Pat Rudicell     Voted: _______ 

Ron Scott      Voted: _______ 

                                 Robin LeJeune          Voted: _______ 

                                Joe Davis, III          Voted: _______ 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE _____ DAY OF __________________, 2015. 

 

       CITY OF DAPHNE 

       ________________________________                                             

        DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________                                                                       

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK  

80



ORDINANCE 2015 - 23 
 

North Main Street Resurfacing 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this; and 
 
WHEREAS, the North Main Street  - from the intersection of Park Drive and U.S. 
Highway 98 to the north terminus of North Main Street at Jubilee Square 
Shopping Center: Mill & Overlay Road (RRR) project (1.88 miles) went out for 
bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed in the amount of  $573,446 (Construction - 
$520,636 +  engineering fees - $52,810 (survey/testing/inspection)). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is 
hereby amended to include an additional appropriation in the amount of 
$573,446 from Capital Reserve Fund for the North Main Street Resurfacing 
project. 
    
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
             

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

81



ORDINANCE 2015-24 
 

An Ordinance Appropriating Funds for Survey, Engineering, for North Main Street 
Concrete Drainage Flume Repairs 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, many streets and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require repairs in order to prevent 
further damage to the City's infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the North Main 
Street Concrete Drainage Flume Repairs and has determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable (Construction- $290,775 + CE&I & Material Testing -$55,247 = $346,022 Total 
project cost); and 
 
WHEREAS, FEMA  and State of Alabama EMA grant monies are available for 87 ½  of the 
project cost ($302,769) for the North Main Street Concrete Drainage Flume Repairs; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts 
associated with this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve 
the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. This project is a qualifying FEMA and State EMA PA, at a guaranteed 87.5% reimbursement 
($302,769). 

3. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount 
of $43,253 from the General Fund for the repair of the North Main Street Concrete 
Drainage Flume Repairs for cost not reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 

4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA 
for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the 
described projects. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ____ day  
of___________, 2015. 
 
 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

82


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Bayside Chess Team
	Finance Mintues
	Backup to Finance Minutes April 20 2015
	Buildings & Property Minutes
	Public Works Minutes
	DRA Minutes
	Permit - DAC
	Permit - Motorcycle Ride
	ABC LIcense - Daphne Chevron
	2015-22 - RES - Appoint Board Members for YMCA (3)
	Backup to 2015-22 - RES - Resumes for YMCA Board
	Backup to 2015-22 - YMCA - LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT-Daphne
	2015-23 - RES - North Main Street Resurfacing-2015
	Backup to 2015-23 -RES
	2015-24 - RES - FEMA-North Main Street Concrete Drainage Flume-2015
	Backup to 2015-24 - RES
	2015-25 - RES -  RockMaterial
	2015-26 - RES - Concrete
	2015-27 - RES - Sales Tax Holiday-2015-continuous
	2015-28 - RES - Severe Weather ST Holiday 2015-continuous
	2015-29 - RES - Lease Authorizing Res-Hancock-Attorney Version
	2015-23 - ORD - North Main Street Resurfacing
	2015-24 - ORD - FEMA-North Main St Concrete Drainage Flume-April Rains-FEMA-FY15



